#### THE ORISSA MARINE FISHING REGULATION ACT, 1981

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS,

#### CHAPTER-1

## **Preliminary**

- 1. Short title, extent and commencement
- 2. Definitions
- 3. Authorisation of Officers for the purpose of any provision of this Act.

#### CHAPTER -II

# Regulation of fishing

- 4. Power to regulate, restrict or prohibit certain matters within specified areas.
- 5. Prohibition of use of fishing vessel in contravention of any order made under section-4
- 6. Licensing of fishing vessels
- 7. Prohibition of fishing using fishing vessels which are not licensed
- 8. Cancellation, suspension and amendment of licenes
- 9. Registration of vessels
- 10. information to be given to authorized officer about movement of fishing vessels
- 11. Returns to be furnished by owners of registered fishing vessels
- 12. Finality of orders under sections 6, 8 and 9
- 13. Appeals against orders refusing grant of license, etc.

#### **CHAPTER III**

#### **Penalties**

- 14. Power to enter and search fishing Vessels
- 15. Disposal of seized fish
- 16. Adjudication
- 17. Penalty
- 18. Constitution of Appellate Board and appeal to Appellate Board
- 19. Revision by Appellate Board
- 20. Powers of adjudicating officer and the Appellate Board in relation to holding enquiry under this Act.
- 21. Offence by Companies

#### **CHAPTER IV**

#### Miscellaneous

- 22. Exemptions
- 23. Protection of action taken in good faith
- 24. Power to make rules.

#### **REGISTERED No. 0-14**

# The Orissa Gazette

#### **EXTRAORDINARY**

#### **PUBLISHED BY AUTHORITY**

No. 934 CUTTACK, TUESDAY, JUNE, 22, 1982/ASADHA 1, 1904

#### **LAW DEPARTMENT**

#### **NOTIFICATION**

# The 19<sup>th</sup> June 1982

No. 9824-Legis. – The following Act of the Orissa Legislative Assembly having been assented to by the Governor on the 15th June 1982, is hereby published for general information.

#### **ORISSA ACT 10 OF 1982**

THE ORISSA MARINE FISHING REGULATION ACT, 1981

AN ACT TO PROVIDE FOR THE REGULATION OF FISHING

#### BY FISHING VESSELS IN THE SEA ALONG THE

#### **COAST LINE OF THE STATE**

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Orissa in the Thirty-third Year of the Republic of India, as follows:-

# **CHAPTER I**

Short title, extent and commencement.

#### **Preliminary**

#### 1. 1.

- (1) This Act may be called the Orissa Marine Fishing Regulation Act, 1982.
- (2) It extends to the whole of the State of Orissa.
- (3) It shall come into force on such date as the State Government may, by notification, appoint in that behalf.

# Definitions

- 2. In this Act, unless the context otherwise requires-
- (a) "adjudicating officer" mean any officer of the Fisheries Department, not below the rank of an Assistant Director of Fisheries, authorised by the Government by notification, to exercise the powers conferred on, and discharge the duties imposed upon, an adjudicating officer by this Act for such area as my be specified in the notification;
- (b) "Appellate Board" means an Appellate Board Constituted under section 18;
- (c) "authorised officer" means such officer as the Government may, by notification, authorize in respect of the matter to which reference is made in the provision of this Act in which the expression occurs: Provided that no officer shall be authorised to exercise the power conferred by sections 14 and 15 unless he is an officer of the Fisheries Department not below the rank of an

Assistant Director of Fisheries;

- (d) "Fishing vessel" means a ship or boat, whether or not fitted with mechanical means of propulsion, which is engaged in sea-fishing for profit and includes-
- (i) a catamaran,
- (ii) a country craft, and
- (iii) a canoe, engaged in sea-fishing;
- (e) "Government" means the State Government of Orissa;
- (f) "port" means the space within such limits as may, from time to time, be defined by the Government, by notification, for the purposes of this Act;
- (g) "registered fishing vessel" means-
- (i) a fishing vessel registered under section 11 of the Marine Products Export Development Authority Act, 1972; 13 of 1972 or
- (ii) a fishing vessel registered under section 9;
- (h) "sea" includes lakes which are connected to the sea;
- (i) "specified area" means such area in the sea along the entire coast line of the State but not beyond territorial waters, as may be specified by the Government, by notification;
- (j) Authorisation of officer for the purposes of any provision of this Act.
- "State" means the State of Orissa and includes the territorial waters along the entire coast line of that State.
- 3. The Government may, by notification, authorise-
- (a) any gazetted officer of the Government; or
- (b) any officer of the Central Government, not being an officer below the rank of a gazetted officer or a commissioned officer in the armed forces of the Union, with the consent of that Government,

to exercise the powers conferred on, and discharge the duties imposed upon, an authorised officer under this Act in such area as may be specified in the notification.

# CHAPTER II

# **Regulation of Fishing**

Power to regulate, restrict or prohibit certain matters within specified areas.

**4. (1)** The Government may, having regard to the matters referred to in sub-section. (2) by order notified in the official Gazette, regulate,

restrict or prohibit-

- (a) Fishing in any specified area by such class or classes of fishing vessels as may be prescribed; or
- (b) The number of fishing vessels which may be used for fishing in any specified area; or
- (c) Catching in any specified area of such species of fish and for such period as may be specified in the notification; or
- (d) The use of such fishing gear in any specified area as may be prescribed:

Provided that any notified order issued under this sub-section prohibiting fishing by fishing vehicles run by mechanized power shall be so made as to cover at least an area of one kilometer in the sea adjoining the mouth of any river relatable to such notified order.

(2) In making an order under sub-section (1), the Government shall have regard to the following matters, namely:-

- (a) the need to protect the interests of different sections of persons engaged in fishing, particularly those engaged in fishing using traditional fishing craft such as catamaran, country craft or canoe;
- (b) the need to conserve fish and to regulate fishing on a scientific basis;
- (c) the need to maintain law and order in the sea;
- (d) any other matter that may be prescribed.

Prohibition of use of fishing vessel in contravention of any order made under section 4.

**5.** No owner or master of a fishing vessel shall use, or cause or allow to be used, such fishing vessel for fishing in any manner which contravenes an order made under section 4:

Provided that nothing in such order shall be construed as preventing the passage of any fishing vessel from; or to, the shore through any specified area to, or from, any area other than a specified area for the purpose of fishing in such other area or for any other purpose:

Provided further that the passing of such fishing vessel through any specified area shall not in any manner cause any damage to any fishing nets or tackles belonging to any person who engages in fishing in the specified area by using any traditional fishing craft such as catamaran, country craft or canoe.

Licensing of fishing vessels

- **6. (1)** The owner of a fishing vessel may make an application to the authorised officer for the grant of a licence for using such fishing vessel for fishing in any specified area.
- (2) Every application under sub-section (1) shall be in such form, contain such particulars, and be accompanied by such fees, as may be prescribed.
- (3) The authorised officer may, after making such enquiry as he deems fit and having regard to the matters referred to in subsection
- (4) either grant to the owner of the fishing vessel, a licence for using such fishing vessel for fishing in the specified areas or specified areas mentioned in such licence or refuse to grant the licence:

Provided that licence shall be granted in respect of any vessel, which is not a registered fishing vessel.

- (4) In granting or refusing licence under sub-section (2), the authorised officer shall have regard to the following, namely:-
- (a) the condition of the fishing vessel including the accessories and fishing gear with which it is fitted;
- (b) any order made under suction 4;
- (c) any other matter that may be prescribed.
- (5) A licence granted under this section shall be in such form and subject to such conditions, including conditions as to payment of such fees and furnishing such security for the due performance of the conditions, as may be prescribed

Provided that different fees, and different amounts by way of security, may be prescribed in respect of licences for different classes of fishing vessels.

(6) A licence granted under this section shall be valid for the period specified therein or for such extended period as the authorised officer may think fit to allow in any case.

Prohibition of fishing using fishing vessels which are not licencsed

7. No person shall, after the commencement of this Act, carry on fishing in any specified area using a fishing vessel which is not

licensed under section 6:

Provided that nothing in this section shall apply to any fishing vessel, which was being used for fishing immediately before the commencement of this Act, for such period as may be notified by the Government.

Cancellation, Suspension and amendment of licences.

- 8. (1) If the authorised officer is satisfied either on a reference made to him in this behalf or otherwise, that-
- (a) a licence granted under section 6 has been obtained by misrepresentation as to an essential fact; or
- (b) the holder of a licence has, without reasonable cause, failed to comply with the conditions subject to which the licence has been granted or has contravened any of the provisions of this Act or any order or rule made there under,

Then without prejudice to any other penalty to which the holder of the licence may be liable under this Act, the authorised officer may, after giving the holder of the licence a reasonable opportunity of showing cause, cancel or suspend the Licence or forfeit the whole or any part of security, if any, furnished for the due performance of the conditions subject to which the licence has been granted.

(2) Subject to any rules that may be made in this behalf, the authorised officer may also vary or amend a licence granted under section 6.

Registration of vessels.

- 9. (1) The owner of every vessel used or intended to be used for purposes of fishing and kept in the State, not being a fishing vessel registered under section 11 of the Marine Products Export Development Authority Act, 1972 shall register such vessel under this Act.
- (2) Every application for registration of such vessel shall be made by the owner thereof to the authorised officer in such form, and shall be accompanied by such fees, as may be prescribed-
- (a) before the expiration of one month from the data on which he first became the owner of such vessel; or
- (b) before the expiration of three months from the commencement of this Act,

Whichever is later:

Provided that the authorised officer may, for sufficient reason to be recorded in writing extend the time limit for registration by such period as he thinks fit

- (3) The authorised officer shall issue to the owner of the vessel registered by him a certificate of registration in the prescribed form and shall enter in a register to be kept by him, in such form as may be prescribed, the particulars of such certificate.
- (4) Registration once made shall continue to be in force until it is cancelled by the authorised officer.
- (5) Every vessel registered under this section shall carry a registration mark, assigned to it by the authorised officer, displayed in the prescribed manner.

Information to be given to authorised officer about movement of fishing vessels.

**10.** Where a registered fishing vessel moves from the area of one port to the area of another port, the owner of such fishing, vessel shall give information to that effect, in the prescribed manner to the authorised officer by whom such fishing vessel was registered and also to the Port Officer having jurisdiction over the area where to such fishing vessel has been moved.

Returns to be furnished by owners of registered fishing vessels.

- **11. (1)** Every owner of registered fishing vessel shall furnish to the authorised officer at the prescribed time and in the prescribed manner such returns as may be prescribed.
- (2) The authorised officer may inspect any registered fishing vessel at any time to verify the accuracy of any return furnished under this section.

Finality of orders under section 6,8 and 9

**12.** Every decision of the authorised officer under section 6, section 8 or section 9, granting or refusing to grant licence for a fishing vessel or canceling, suspending, varying or amending such licence or registering, or canceling the registration of a vessel shall, subject to any right of appeal under section 13, be final.

Appeals against orders refusing grant of licence, etc.

**13. (1)** Any person aggrieved by an order of the authorised officer refusing to grant licence for a fishing vessel or canceling, suspending or varying or amending such licence or refusing to register a vessel or canceling the registration of such vessel may, within thirty days from the date on which the order is communicated to him, prefer an appeal to such authority as may be prescribed (hereafter in this section referred to as the appellate authority):

Provided that the appellate authority may entertain the appeal after the expiry of the said period of thirty days if it is satisfied that the appellant was prevented by sufficient cause from fitting the appeal in time.

- (2) On receipt of an appeal under sub-section (1), the appellate authority shall, after giving the appellant a reasonable opportunity of being heard pass such orders thereon as it deems fit as expeditiously as possible.
- (3) Every order passed by the appellate authority under this section shall be final.

## **CHAPTER III**

## **Penalties**

# Power to enter and search fishing vessel.

- **14.** The authorised officer may, if he has reason to believe that any fishing vessel is being, or has been, used in contravention of any of the provisions of this Act, or of any order or rule made there under or any of the conditions of the licence, enter and search such vessel and impound such vessel and seize any fish found in it.
- **15. (1)** The authorised officer shall keep the fishing vessel, impounded under section 14, in such place and in such manner as may be prescribed.
- (2) In the absence of suitable facilities for the storage of the fish seized, the authorised officer may, if he is of the opinion that the disposal of such fish is necessary, dispose of such fish and deposit the proceeds thereof in the prescribed manner in the office of the adjudicating officer.

# Adjudication

- **16.(1)** Where any authorised officer, referred to in section 14, has reason to believe that any fishing vessel is being, or has been, used in contravention of any of the provisions of this Act, or any order or rule made there under or any of the conditions of the licnece, he shall make a report thereof to the adjudicating officer.
- (2) The adjudicating officer shall hold an enquiry, in to the matters mentioned in the report, in the prescribed manner, after giving

all the parties concerned a reasonable opportunity of being heard.

#### **Penalty**

- 17. (1) The adjudicating officer shall, after the enquiry under section 16, decide whether any person has. used, or caused or allowed to be used, any fishing vessel, in contravention of any of the provisions of this Act, or of any order or rule made there under or any of the conditions of the licence and any such person, on being found guilty by the adjudicating officer, shall be liable to such penalty not exceeding-
- (a) five thousand rupees, if the value of the fish involved is one thousand rupees or less;
- (b) five times the value of the fish, if the value of the fish involved is more than one thousand rupees; or
- (c) five thousand rupees, in any other case, being a case not involving any fish,

as may be adjudged by the adjudicating officer.

- (2) In addition to any penalty that may be imposed under sub-section (1), the adjudicating officer may direct that-
- (a) the registration certificate of the fishing vessel which has been used, or caused or allowed to be used, in the manner referred to in sub-section (1) or the licnece, any condition of which has been contravened, shall be-
- (i) cancelled or revoked, as the case may be; or
- (ii) suspended for such period as the adjudicating officer deems fit; or
- (b) Disposal of seized fish.

the fishing vessel or fish that may have been impounded or seized, as the case may be under section 14 shall be forfeited to the Government:

Provided that no fishing vessel shall be forfeited under clause (b), if the adjudicating officer after hearing the owner of such vessel or any person claiming any right there to is satisfied that the owner or such person had exercised due care for the prevention of the commission of such offence.

Constitution of Appellate Board and appeal to Appellate Board

- 18. (1) The Government may, by notification, constitute one or more Appellate Board or Appellate Boards.
- (2) The Appellate Board shall consist of three members to be appointed by the Government of whom one shall be a person who is or has been a member of the superior Judicial Service (Senior Branch) or the State, and he shall be appointed as the Chairman of the Appellate Board.
- (3) Where only one Appellate Board is constituted that Appellate Board shall have Jurisdiction throughout the State, and where more than one Appellate Board is constituted the Government may, by notification, define the jurisdiction of each Appellate Board.
- (4) Any person aggrieved by an order of the adjudicating officer may, within thirty days from the date on which the orders is made, prefer an appeal to the Appellate Board, having jurisdiction to hear such appeal:

Provided that the Appellate Board may entertain any appeal after the expiry of the said period of thirty days, but not after the expiry of sixty days from the date aforesaid, if it is satisfied that the appellant was prevented by sufficient cause from filing the appeal in time:

(5) No appeal under this section shall be entertained by the Appellate Board unless the appellant has, at the time of filing the

appeal, deposited the amount of penalty payable under the order appealed against:

Provided that, on an application made by the appellant in this behalf, the Appellate Board may, if it is of the opinion that the deposit to be made under this sub-section will cause, undue hard-ship to the appellant, by order in writing, dispense with such deposit either unconditionally or subject to such conditions as it may deem fit to impose.

- (6) On receipt of an appeal under sub-section (4), the Appellate Board may, after holding such enquiry as it deems fit, and after giving the parties concerned a reasonable opportunity of being heard, confirm, modify or set aside the order appealed against and the decision of the Appellate Board shall be final; and-
- (a) if the sum deposited by way of penalty under sub-section (5) exceeds the penalty directed to be paid by the Appellate Board, the excess amount, or
- (b) if the Appellate Board sets aside the order imposing penalty the whole of the sum deposited by way of penalty, shall be refunded to the appellant

Revision by Appellate Board.

.19. The Appellate Board may call for and examine the records of any order passed by an adjudicating officer under section 17 against which no appeal has been preferred under section 18, for the purpose of satisfying itself as to the legality or propriety of such order or as to the regularity of the procedure and pass such order with respect there to as it may think fit:

Provided that no such order shall be made except after giving the person affected a reasonable opportunity of being hard in the matter.

Powers of adjudicating officer and the Appellate Board in relation to holding enquiry under this Act.

- **20. (1)** The adjudicating officer and the Appellate Board shall, while holding an enquiry, have all the powers of a Civil Court under the Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 while trying a suit, in respect of the following matters, namely:-
- (a) summoning and enforcing the attendance of witnesses;
- (b) requiring the discovery and production of any document;
- (c) requisitioning any public record or copy thereof from any court or office;
- (d) receiving evidence on affidavits; and
- (e) issuing commissions for the examination of witnesses or documents.
- (2) The adjudicating officer and the Appellate Board shall, while exercising any power under this Act, be deemed to be a Civil Court for the purposes of sections 345 and 346 of the Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973.

# Offences by Companies

**21.(1)** Where an offence under this Act, has been committed by a company, every person who, at the time the offence was committed, was in charge of, and was responsible to the company for the conduct, of the business of the company as well as the company, shall be deemed to be guilty of the offence and shall be liable to be proceeded against and punished accordingly:

Provided that nothing contained in this sub-section shall render any such person liable to any punishment, if the proves that the offence was committed without his knowledge or that the had exercised all due diligence to prevent the commission of such offence.

(2) Notwithstanding anything contained in sub-section (1), where any offence under this Act has been committed with the consent or connivance of, or is attributable to any neglect on the part of any director, manager, secretary or other officer, such director, manager, secretary or other officer shall be deemed to be guilty of that offence and shall be liable to be proceeded against and punished accordingly.

Explanation - For the purposes of this section, -

- (a) "company" means anybody corporate and includes a firm or other association of individuals; and
- (b) "director" in relation to a firm, means a partner in the firm.

#### **CHAPTER IV**

#### Miscellaneous

#### **Exemptions**

- **22. (1)** Nothing contained in this Act, shall apply to survey vessels belonging to the Central Government or any State Government or any public undertaking.
- (2) If the Government is of the opinion that having regard to the purposes of this Act. It would not be in the public interest to apply all or any of the provisions of this Act to any class or classes of fishing vessels used for fishing in any specified area or specified areas, it may by notification, exempt, subject to such conditions as it may think fit to impose, such class or classes of fishing vessels used for fishing in such specified area or specified areas, as it may specify in the notification from the operation of all or any of the provisions of this Act.

Protection of action taken in good faith

**23.(1)** No suit, prosecution or other legal proceeding shall lie against the Government or any officer or authority for anything which is in good faith done or intended to be done in pursuance of this Act or any order or rule made there under.

Power to make rules.

- (2) No suit or other legal proceeding shall lie against the Government or any officer or authority for any damage caused or likely to be caused by anything which is in good faith done or intended to be done in pursuance of this Act or any order or rule made thereunder.
- 24. (1) The Government may, by notification, make rules for carrying out the provisions of this Act.
- (2) In particular, and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing power, such rules may provide for all or any of the following matters, namely:-
- (a) the matters to which regard shall be had in making an order under sub-section (1) of section 4;
- (b) The form of the application for licence under sub-section (1) of section 6, the particulars which it shall contain and the fees which shall accompany it;
- (c) The matters to which regard shall be had in granting or refusing a licence, under clause (c) of sub-section (4) of section 6, the fees payable for the licence and the security for the due performance of the conditions of the licence;
- (d) The procedure to be followed in granting or refusing a licence under section 6 or canceling, suspending, varying or amending such licence or in registering a vessel under section 9 or canceling such registration;
- (e) The form of the application for registration of a vessel under section 9, the particulars which such application shall contain, and the fees which shall accompany the application, the form of the certificate of registration and the form of the register referred to in sub-section (3) of that section, the manner in which the registration mark referred to in sub-section (4) of that section shall be displayed;
- (f) The manner in which the information referred to in section 10 shall be given;
- (g) The time and manner in which the returns referred to in sub-section (1) of section 11 shall be furnished;
- (h) The authority to whom appeals shall be preferred under sub-section (1) of section 13;
- (i) The place and the manner in which an impounded fishing vessel shall be kept under sub-section (1) of section 15 and the manner in which the proceeds of the disposal of the seized fish shall be deposited with the adjudicating officer under sub-section

- (2) of that section;
- (j) The procedure of the enquiry by the adjudicating officer under sub-section (2) of section 16;
- (k) The qualification of the members of the Appellate Board other that the Chairman, the fees and allowances payable to the Chairman and other members of the Appellate Board, the procedure of the Appellate Board;
- (I) The fees payable for the supply of copies of documents or orders or for any other purpose or matter involving the rendering of any service by any officer or authority under this Act;
- (m) Any other matter which is to be, or may be, provided for by rules made under this Act.

By order of the Governor

#### D. HOTA

#### **Additional Secretary to Government**

#### (a). Notification 27th Dec 93

Government of Orissa Fisheries and ARD Department

# **NOTIFICATION**

## Bhubaneswar, Dated, the 27.12.93

No .7 Fy. -(M). 23/93. – 22810 /FARD In exercise of the Powers conferred by section 3(a) of the Orissa Marine Fishing Regulation Act, 1982 (Orissa Act 10 of 1982), the State Government do hereby appoint the Divisional Forest Officer, Mangrove Forest (Wild Life) Division, Rajanagar with headquarters at Rajanagar, District Kendrapara and Asst. Conservator of Forest attached to his Division with headquarters at Chandabali, District Bhadrak to be the Authorised Officers to check fishing activities which has been prohibited within the radius of 20 K.Ms. of Gahirmatha Beach in Bhitar Kanika Wild life Sanctuary.

# By order of the Governor,

S. K. Ray

Deputy Secretary to Government.

# Memo No. 22811 /FARD., Dt. 27.12.93

Copy forwarded to the Director of Printing Stationery and publication, Orissa, Cuttack with a request to publish in the next issue of the Orissa Gazette.

Sd/-

Deputy Secretary to Government.

# Memo No. 22812 /FARD., Dt. 27.12.93

Copy forwarded to All Department/ All Heads of Department for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

Deputy Secretary to Government.

# Memo No. 22813 /FARD., Dt. 27.12.93

Copy forwarded to Revenue Divisional Commissioner (CD) Cuttack/Collector, Cuttack/Collector, Kendrapara/ Collector,

Jagatsinghpur/ Collector, Bhadrak/ Collector, Balasore for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

**Deputy Secretary to Government** 

#### (b). Notification 20th March 03

**Government of Orissa Fisheries and ARD Department** 

# NOTIFICATION

# Dated the 20<sup>th</sup> March, 2003

In exercise of power conferred by Section 3 (b) of the Orissa Marine Fishing Regulation Act 1982 (Orissa Act 10 of 1982), the state Government do hereby declare the following Gazetted Commanding Officers of Coast Guard Ships to exercise the powers conferred on and discharge the duties imposed upon an Authorised Officer under this Act in the specified area given below.

1.	Commanding officer of Cost guard ship in the rank of Commandant.	Coast guard District (Orissa) Badapadia, Paradeep.	In the entire Coast of Orissa but not beyond its territorial waters
2.	Commanding Officer of the Coast Guard ship in the rank of Deputy Commandant.	-do-	
3.	Commanding Officer of the Coast Guard ship in the rank of Assistant Commandant.	-do-	

# By order of Government

A. K. Tripathy

Commissioner-cum-Secretary to Govt.

# Memo No. 6594 / FARD., Dt. 20.03.2003

Copy forward to the Director, Printing Stationery and Publication, Orissa, Madhupatna, Cuttack for information with a request to public the above notification in the next issue of Orissa extraordinary Gazette and supply one hundred copies to the Fisheries and ARD Department, Orissa Secretariat.

Sd/-

Additional Secretary to Government.

## Memo No. 6595 / FARD., Dt 20.03.2004

Copy forwarded to all Department of Government/ All Heads of Department for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

Additional Secretary to Government.

#### (c) Notification 1st May 03

Government of Orissa
Fisheries & Animal Resources Dev. Department

# **NOTIFICATION**

4 Fy. M. 16/2000: In pursuance of Section 3 (a) of the Orissa Marine Fishing Regulation Act 1982 (Orissa Act 10 of 1982) the State Government to hereby declare all the Asst. Director of Fisheries and District Fisheries Officers of Orissa as authorised officers in addition to the officers declared in this Department Notification No. 6593/FARD dt. 20.3.2003 to exercise the powers conferred on and discharge the duties imposed upon them under this Act in the entire state coast but not beyond territorial waters.

The Director of Fisheries, Orissa, Cuttack will utilize the services of the aforesaid officers as and when required.

#### By order of Governor,

A. K. Tripathy

Commission-cum-Secretary to Government.

#### Memo No. 9424 / FARD., Dt. 1.5.2003

Copy forwarded to the Director, printing Stationery and Publication, Orissa, Madhupatna, Cuttack for information with a request to publish the above notification in the next issue of Orissa extraordinary Gazette and supply one hundred copies to the Fisheries & A.R.D. Department Orissa Secretariat.

Sd/-

Addl. Secretary to Government.

#### Memo No. 9425 / FARD., Dt. 1.5.2003

Copy forwarded to all Department of Government/ All Heads of Department for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

Addl. Secretary to Government.

## Memo No. 9426 / FARD., Dt. 1.5.2003

Copy Forwarded to the R.D.C. (CD) Cuttack/ RDC (Southern Division) Berhampur/ Managing Director, Orissa Maritime & Chilika Area Development/ Deputy Director, Marine Products export Development Authority Bhubaneswar for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

Addl. Secretary to Government.

#### (d) Notification 27th May 04

**Government of Orissa** 

Fisheries & Animal Resources Dev. Department

#### **NOTIFICATION**

#### Dated Bhubaneswar the, 27.5.2004.

No. 7Fy. Sch. 22/2004 (Pt.)- 9648 /FARd., In exercise of the power conferred by clause (c) of sub-section (i) of Section 4 of Orissa Marine Fishing Regulation Act, 1982 (Orissa Act 10 of 1982), the State Government having regard to the matters referred to in sub-section (2) of the said section, do hereby prohibit fishing by trawlers up to a seaward distance of 20 Kms from the high tide line (shore) of Orissa Coast from Jatadhar River Mouth to Devi River mouth and from Chilika Mouth (Magarmukha) to Rushikulya River Mouth for a period of 5 (five) months from January to May of every Calendar year from 1.1.2005 to 31.5.2006.

# By order of the Governor,

A. K. TRIPATHY.

Commissioner –cum- Secretary to Government.

#### Memo No. 9649 / FARD., Dated. 27.5.2004

Copy forwarded to the Director, Printing Stationary and Publication Orissa, Cuttack with a request to publish the Notification in the next issue of Orissa Gazette and supply with 100 copies thereof to Fisheries and A.R.D. Department.

Sd/-

**Under Secretary to Government** 

#### Memo No. 9650 / FARD., Dated. 27.5.2004

Copy forwarded to all Department for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

**Under Secretary to Government** 

#### Memo No. 9651 / FARD., Dated. 27.5.2004

Copy forwarded to R.D.C. (CD) Cuttack / R.D.C. (SD) Berhampur/ Collector, Puri/ Ganjam/ Cuttack/ Jagatsinghpur/ Khurda/ Kendrapara/Balasore/ Bhadrak for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

**Under Secretary to Government** 

#### Memo No. 9652 / FARD., Dated. 27.5.2004

Copy forwarded to the Director of Fisheries, Orissa, Cuttack/ C.C.F. (Wildlife) & Chief Wildlife warden, Orissa, Bhubaneswar/Director, Nandankanan, Bhubaneswar for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

**Under Secretary to Government** 

## Memo No. 9653 / FARD., Dated. 27.5.2004

Copy forwarded to D.F.O. – Mangrove (WL) Division, Rajanagar with Headquarters at Chandabali Bhadrak for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

**Under Secretary to Government** 

#### Memo No. 9654 / FARD., Dated. 27.5.2004

Copy forwarded to District Fishery Officer, Bhadrak/ Balasore/ Kendrapara /Jagatsinghpur/Puri/ Khurda/ Ganjam and Asst. Director of fisheries (M) Puri/ Kujanga/Balasore/Ganjam for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

**Under Secretary to Government** 

#### Memo No. 9655 / FARD., Dated. 27.5.2004

Copy forwarded to Commander, Coast Guard, District Headquarters No.7 Orissa, Paradip for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

Under Secretary to Government

# Memo No. 9656 / FARD., Dated. 27.5.2004

Copy to Govt. of India Ministry of Agriculture, Department of Animal Husbandry & Dairying/Krishi Bhawan, New Delhi for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

**Under Secretary to Government** 

#### Memo No. 9657 / FARD., Dated. 27.5.2004

Copy to Guard File (20 Copies).

Sd/-

Under Secretary to Government

Government of Orissa Fisheries and A.R.D. Department

# **NOTIFICATION**

## Bhubaneswar, dated, the 27.5.2004

No. 7Fy.Sch. 22/2004 (P.t) – 9658 /FARD., In exercise of the powers conferred by Clause (c) of sub-section (i) of Section 4 of the Orissa Marine Fishing Regulation Act, 1982 (Orissa Act 10 of 1982) the State Government having regard to the mattes referred to in sub-section (2) of the said section do hereby prohibit fishing within a seaward radius of 20 kms. From Gahirmatha area of Bhitarkanika Wildlife Sanctuary for a further period from 1.6.2004 to 31.5.2006.

# By order of the Governor

A. K. Tripathy

Commissioner-cum-Secretary to Government.

## Memo No.9659 / FARD., Dated. 27.5.04

Copy forwarded to the Director, Printing, Stationery and publication, Orissa, Cuttack with request to publish the above Notification in the next issue of Orissa Gazette and supply with100 copies thereof to the Fisheries and A.R.D. Deptt.

Sd/-

**Under Secretary to Government** 

# Memo No.9660 / FARD., Dated. 27.5.04

Copy forwarded to all Departments of Government /All Heads of Department for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

**Under Secretary to Government** 

# Memo No.9661 / FARD., Dated. 27.5.04

Copy to R.D.C. (CD) Cuttack/Collector, Kendrapara/Collector, Jagatsinghpur /Collector, Bhadrak/Collector, Balasore for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

**Under Secretary to Government** 

#### Memo No.9662 / FARD., Dated. 27.5.04

Copy to the Director of Fisheries, Orissa, Cuttack/ C.C.F. (WL) and Chief Wild Life Warden, Bhubaneswar for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

Under Secretary to Government

#### Memo No.9663 / FARD., Dated. 27.5.04

Copy forwarded to District Fishery Officer, Kendrapara/ Jagatsingpur/ Balasore / Bhadrak for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

**Under Secretary to Government** 

#### Memo No.9664 / FARD., Dated. 27.5.04

Copy to the Government of India, Ministry of Agriculture, Department of Animal Husbandry and Dairying, Krishi Bhawan. New Delhi for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

**Under Secretary to Government** 

#### Memo No.9665 / FARD., Dated. 27.5.04

Copy forwarded to Commander, Coast Guard, District Headquarters No.7 Orissa, Badapadia, Paradeep for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

**Under Secretary to Government** 

#### Memo No.9666 / FARD., Dated. 27.5.04

Copy to Guard file (20 copies) for information.

Sd/-

**Under Secretary to Government** 

# (e). Notification 4th Feb 05

## **Government of Orissa**

Fisheries and A.R.D. Department.

# **NOTIFICATION**

#### Dated, Bhubaneswar the 4 the, Feb 05

No. 7Fy. Sch. 22/2004-1895 / FARD, In exercise of the powers conferred by clauses (b) & (c) of sub-section (1) of section 4 of the Orissa Marine Fishing Regulation Act, 1982 (Orissa Act-10 of 1982), the State Government having regard to the matters referred to in sub-section (2) of the said section, do hereby prohibit motorized vessels, trawlers and those using mechanized fishing techniques in ten kilometers form the following specified coast in the sea comprising the sea turtle congregation area and their buffer zones in the vicinity of the following three river mouths of Orissa coast for a period of seven months from November to May of each calendar year from the 1<sup>st</sup> November, 2005 to the 31<sup>st</sup> May, 2007:-

1. Dhamara river mouth (shortt's island to Udabali north)

(Latitude - 87000 to 87015 & Longitude = 200 45 to 200 05)

2. Devi river mouth (Keluni Muhana to new Devi nasi island north)

(Latitude = 86015 to 86035 and Longitude = 19040 to 20005)

3. Rushikulya river mouth (South of Prayagi to north of Aryapalli)

(Latitude = 85000 to 85012 & Longitude = 19018 to 19028)

#### By order of the Governor

B. K. Das

Joint Secretary to Govt.

#### Memo No. 1896 / FARD., Dt. 04.02.05

Copy forwarded to the Director, Printing Stationery and Publication, Orissa, Cuttack with a request to publish the notification in the next issue of the Orissa Gazettee and supply with 100 (Hundred) copies thereof to Fisheries and A.R.D. Department.

Sd/-

Under Secretary to Govt.

# Memo No. 1897 / FARD., 04.02.05

Copy forwarded to all Departments /All Heads of Department for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

Under Secretary to Govt.

#### Memo No. 1898 / FARD., 04.02.05

Copy Forwarded to the R.D.C (CD), Cuttack/ R.D.C. (SD), Berhampur/ Collector, Puri/ Ganjam/ Cuttack/Jagatsinghpur/ Khurda/ Kendrapara/ Bhadrak/ Balasore for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

Under Secretary to Govt.

#### Memo No. 1899 / FARD., 04.02.05

Copy Forwarded to the Director of Fisheries, Orissa, Cuttack /PCCF (wildlife), Orissa, Bhubaneswar/ Director, Nandankanan, Bhubaneswar for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

Under Secretary to Govt.

# Memo No. 1900 / FARD., 04.02.05

Copy Forwarded to the District forest Officer, Mangrove (Wildlife) Division, Rajnagar with headquarter at Chandabali, Bhadrak for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

Under Secretary to Govt.

#### Memo No. 1901 / FARD., 04.02.05

Copy Forwarded to the District Fishery Officer, Bhadrak / Kendrapara / Balasore / Puri/Ganjam/Jagatsinghpur/Khurda and Assistant Director of Fisheries, (Marine), Puri/ Ganjam/Balasore/Kujanga for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

Under Secretary to Govt.

# Memo No. 1902 / FARD., 04.02.05

Copy Forwarded to Commandant, Coast Guard, District Headquarter No.7 Orissa, Paradeep for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

Under Secretary to Govt.

Memo No. 1903 / FARD., 04.02.05

Copy to Guard File (20 Copies).
Sd/-

Under Secretary to Govt.

# **Fisheries & Animal Resources Development Department**

#### **NOTIFICATION**

# The 4<sup>th</sup> February 2005

No. 1874-4-Fy.M-16/2000 (Pt.) FARD – In exercise of the powers conferred by section 24 of the Orissa Marine Fishing Regulation Act, 1982 (Orissa Act 10 of 1982), the State Government do hereby make the following rules further to amend the Orissa Marine Fishing Regulation Rules, 1983, namely:-

- 1. (1) These rules may be called the "Orissa Marine Fishing Regulation (Amendment) Rules, 2005."
- (2) They shall come into force on the date of their publication in the Orissa Gazette.
- 2. In the Orissa Marine Fishing Regulation Rules, 1983, (hereinafter referred to as the said rules), in rule 2, after clause (c) the following clause shall be inserted, namely:-
- "(cc)" fishing gear" means the equipment or implement, excluding boat, to capture fishes or aquatic animals irrespective of the materials employed for fabrication;"
- 3. In the said rules, in rule 24, for the words 'Additional Director of Fisheries; the words 'Director of Fisheries' shall be substituted.
- 4. In the said rules, in form VI, for the district Cuttack appearing in Column- (1) and the entries made against it the following shall be substituted, namely:-

"Jagatsinghpur Paradeep Jagatsinghpur district from Hansua 450 10 (OS) river mouth southwards till Harishpurgarh (North Deviriver 40 (DS)"

Mouth)

#### By order of the Governor

B. K. Das

Joint secretary to Government

Government of Orissa Fisheries and A.R.D. Department

#### **NOTIFICATION**

## Bhubaneswar, dated, the 04.02.2005

No. 4Fy. M-16/2000 (Pt.) 1874 /FARD., In exercise of the powers conferred by Section 24 of the Orissa Marine Fishing Regulation Act, 1982 (Orissa Act 10 of 1982), the State Government do hereby make the following rules further to amend the Orissa Marine Fishing Regulation Rules, 1983, namely:-

- 1. (1) These rules may be called the "Orissa Marine Fishing Regulation (Amendment) Rules, 2005.
- (2) They shall come in to force on the date of their publication in the Orissa Gazette.
- 2. In the Orissa Marine Fishing Regulation Rules, 1983, (Hereinafter referred to as the said rules), in rule 2, after clause (c) the following clause shall be inserted, namely:-
- "(cc) " fishing gear" means the equipment or implement, excluding boat, to capture fishes or aquatic animals irrespective of the materials employed for fabrication"
- 3. In the said rules, in rule 24, for the words 'Additional Director of Fisheries', the words 'Director of Fisheries' shall be substituted.
- 4. In the said rules, in form VI, for the district Cuttack appearing in Column-(1) and the entries made against it, the following shall be substituted namely:-

"Jagatsinghpur Paradeep Jagatsinghpur district

From Hansua river mouth 450 10(OS)

Southwards till 40 (DS)"

Harishpurgarh (Norht Devi river mouth)

# By order of the Governor

B. K. Das

Joint Secretary to Government.

# Memo No. 1875 / FARD., Dt. 4.2.05

Copy forwarded to the Director of Printing, Stationary and Publication, Orissa, Madhupatna, Cuttack with a request to please publish the order in the extra ordinary Gazette and supply 100 copies to this Department.

Sd/-

Joint Secretary to Government.

# Memo No. 1876 / FARD., Dt. 4.2.05

Copy Forwarded to All Department of Government/All Heads of Department for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

Joint Secretary to Government.

# Memo No. 1877 / FARD., Dt. 4.2.05

Copy Forwarded to R.D.C (CD) Cuttack/RDC (SZ), Berhampur/Collector,

Cuttack/Kendrapara/Jagatsinghpur/Bhadrad/Balasore/Puri/Khrda/Ganjam for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

Joint Secretary to Government.

# Memo No. 1878 / FARD., Dt. 4.2.05

Copy Forwarded to the Director of fisheries, Orissa Cuttack/Principal of Chief Conservator of Forest (Wildlife) and Chief Wildlife

Warden, Orissa, Bhubaneswar for information and necessary action.			
Sd/- Joint Secretary to Government.			
Memo No. 1879 / FARD., Dt. 4.2.05 Copy to Guard File (10 spare copies).			
Sd/- Joint Secretary to Government.			
FISHERIES & A. R. D. DEPARTMENT  NOTIFICATION  The 4 <sup>th</sup> February 2005			
No. 1874 – 4Fy. M-16/2000 (Pt.) –FARD. – In exercise of the powers conferred by Section 24 of the Orissa Marine Fishing Regulation Act, 1982 (Orissa Act, 10 of 1982), the State Government do hereby make the following rules further to amend the Orissa Marine Fishing Regulation Rule, 1983. namely:-			
1. (1) These rules may be called the "Orissa Marine Fishing Regulation (Amendment) Rules, 2005".			
(2) They shall come into force on the date of their publication in the Orissa Gazette.			
2. In the Orissa Marine Fishing Regulation Rules, 1983, (hereinafter referred to as the said rules), in rule 2. after clause (c), the following clause shall be inserted, namely:-			
"(cc) "Fishing gear" means the equipment or implement, excluding boat, to capture fishes or aquatic animals irrespective of the materials employed for fabrication".			
3. In the said rules, in rule 24, for the words "Additional Director of Fisheries", the words "Director of Fisheries" shall be substituted.			
4. In the said rules, in Form VI, for the district Cuttack appearing in column (1) and the entries made against it, the following shall be substituted, namely:-			
"Jagatsinghpur Paradeep Jagatsinghpur district from Hansua 450 10 (OS)			
river Mouth Southwards till 40 (DS)"			
Harishpurgarh (North Devi river			
Mouth).			
By order of the Governor			

B. K. DAS

Joint Secretary to Government

# Government of Orissa, Fisheries and A. R. D. Department

#### NOTIFICATION

# Dated, Bhubaneswar the 4<sup>th</sup> Feb, 05

No. 7Fy. Sch. 22/2004 1895 / FARD, in exercise of the power conferred by clauses (b) and (c) of sub-section (1) of section 4 of the Orissa Marine Fishery Regulation Act. 1982 (Orissa Act-10 of 1982), the State Government having regard to the matters referred to in sub-section (2) of the said section, do hereby prohibit motorized vessels, trawlers and those using mechanized fishing techniques in ten kilometers from the following specified coast in the sea comprising the sea turtle congregation area and their buffer zones in the vicinity of the following three river mouths of Orissa coast for a period of seven months from November to May of each calendar year for the 1st November, 2005 to the 31st May, 2007:-

1. Dhamara river mouth (Shortt's island to Udabali north)

(Latitude = 87000 to 87015 &

Longitude = 200 45 to 200 05)

2. Devi river mouth (Keluni Muhana to new Devi nasi island north)

(Latitude = 860 15 to 860 35

and Longitude = 190 40 to 200 05)

3. Rusikulya river mouth (South or Prayagi to north of Aryapalli)

(Latitude = 850 00 to 850 12 &

Longitude = 190 18 to 190 28)

#### By order of the Governor

B. K. Das

Joint Secretary to Govt.

# Memo No. 1896 / FARD., Dt. 4.2.05

Copy forwarded to the Director Printing Stationery and Publication, Orissa, Cuttack with a request to publish the notification in the next issue of the Orissa Gazette and supply with 100 (Hundred) copies there of to Fisheries and A. R. D. Department.

Under Secretary to Govt.

# Memo No. 1897 / FARD., Dt. 4.2.05

 $\label{lem:copy} \textbf{Copy forwarded to All Department /All Head Department for information and necessary action.} \\$ 

Under Secretary to Govt.

#### Memo No. 1898 / FARD., Dt. 4.2.05

Copy forwarded to the R.D.C. (CD), Cuttack/ R.D.C. (SD), Berhampur/ Collector,

Puri/Ganjam/Cuttack/Jayatsinghpur/Khurda/Kengrapara/Bhadrak/Balsore information and necessary action.

Under Secretary to Govt.

#### Memo No. 1899 / FARD., Dt. 4.2.05

Copy Forwarded to the Director of Fisheries Orissa, Cuttack/PCCF (Wildlife), Orissa, Bhubaneswar Nandankanan, Bhubaneswar for Information and necessary action.

Under Secretary to Govt.

#### Memo No. 1900 / FARD., Dt. 4.2.05

Copy Forwarded to the District Forest of Mangrove (Wildlife) Division, Rajnagar with headquarter Chandabali, Bhadrak for information and necessary action.

Under Secretary to Govt.

#### Memo No. 1901 / FARD., Dt. 4.2.05

Copy Forwarded to the District Fishery of Bhadrak/ Kendrapare/Balasore/Puri /Ganjam/ Jagatsinghpur/ Khurda and Assistant Director of Fisheries, (Mariness Ganjam/ Balasore/Kujanga for information and necessary action.

Under Secretary to Govt.

## Memo No. 1902 / FARD., Dt. 4.2.05

Copy Forwarded to Commandant, Coast Guard, Headquarter No.7 Orissa, Paradeep for information necessary action.

Under Secretary to Govt.

# Memo No. 1903 / FARD., Dt. 4.2.05

Copy to Guard File (20 copies).

Under Secretary to Govt.

# (f). Notification 21st July 05

Government of Orissa
Fisheries & A.R.D. Department

# **NOTIFICATION**

# Bhubaneswar, dated the , 21st, July, 2005

No. 7Fy. Sch. 22/2004- 11327 /FARD., In exercise of the powers conferred by clauses (a) and (b) of sub-section (1) of section 4 of the Orissa Marine Fishing Regulation Act, 1982 (Orissa Act 10 of 1982), the Government having regard to the matter referred to in sub-section (2) of the said section do hereby regulate, the fishing in the area and during the period as specified in columns (2) and (1) and, the use of fishing gear as specified in column (3) of the table below, by allowing the persons engaged in fishing by using traditional non-motorized fishing crafts such as catamarans, country crafts and canoes and prohibit fishing, in the area so specified, by motorized vessel and mechanized fishing crafts for the period specified in column (1) and also prohibit the use of fishing gear made by seine nets (ring nets) along the entire coast throughout the year.

Period	Area	Particulars of the Fishing Gear
(1)	(2)	(3)
from the 1st. November of calendar year to the 31st May of the next calendar	Within five kilometers of the seaward distance in the specified Olive Ridley Sea Turtle congregation namely:-	Multifilament gill nets of a length less than three hundred meters with mesh size below one hundred and forty millimeters and twine diameter of 0.7 millimeters and
	Devi River Mouth (Keluni Muhana to New Devi Nasi island North).	monofilament gill net of above dimension with twine diameter of
year.	· Rushikulya River Mouth (South of Prayagi to North of Aryapalli).	0.5 millimeter.
	· Dhamara River mouth (Short's Island to Udabali).	The distance between two pieces of net should have a gap of two hundred meters.

# By order of the Governor

C. J. Venugopal

Commission –cum-secretary to Government

# Memo No.11328 /FARD., Dt. 21.7.05

Copy forwarded to the Director of Printing, Stationery & Publication, Orissa, Madhupatna, Cuttack with a request to please publish the order in the extra ordinary Gazette and supply 100 copies to this Department.

Sd/-

joint Secretary to Government.

## Memo No.11329 /FARD., Dt. 21.7.05

Copy forwarded to All Department of Government All Heads of Department for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

Joint Secretary to Government.

# Memo No.11330 /FARD., Dt. 21.7.05

Copy forwarded to RDC (CD), Cuttack/RDC (SZ), Berhampur/ Collector

Cuttack/Kendrapara/Jagatsinghpur/Bhadrak/Balsore/Puri/Khurda/Ganjam for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

Joint Secretary to Government.

# Memo No.11331 /FARD., Dt. 21.7.05

Copy forwarded to the Director of Fishery, Orissa, Cuttack/PCCF (Wildlife) and Chief Wildlife warden, Orissa, Bhubaneswar for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

Joint Secretary to Government.

# Memo No.11332 /FARD., Dt. 21.7.05

Copy forwarded to Orissa Secretariat Gazette Cell, C/O Commerce and Transport (Commerce) Department with floppy of the aforesaid notification for information and necessary action.

Sd/-

Joint Secretary to Government.

# Memo No.11333 /FARD., Dt. 21.7.05

Copy to Guard File

Sd/-Joint Secretary to Government